
Hurricane City Council minutes 1-29-2015 

1 

 

Minutes of the Hurricane City Council held on January 29, 2015 at 5 p.m. in the Council 

chambers at 147 N. 870 West, Hurricane, Utah.  

 

Members Present: Mayor John Bramall, Council members Darin Larson, Kevin Tervort, Pam 

Humphries, Darin Thomas, and Ethelyn Humphries.  

 

Staff members present: City Attorney Fay Reber, City Manager Clark Fawcett, GIS Specialist Joe 

Rhodes, Recorder/Assistant City Manager Kaden DeMille, Public Works Director Mike Vercimak, 

City Engineer Arthur LeBaron, Planning Director Toni Foran, Power Superintendent Dave Imlay, 

Ash Creek Special Service District Superintendent Darwin Hall, and Fire Chief Tom Kuhlmann. 

 

Mayor John Bramall called the meeting to order at 5:07 p.m.  

 

Darwin Hall stated the sump pumps in the basement of the house in the Retreat at Sand Hollow 

were pumping into the sewer and now they are pumping the water out into the City curb. Clark 

Fawcett commented he does not feel the City should be responsible for the problem, which the 

Water District’s ground water storage is rising in the basement. John Bramall stated the District 

has attempted to negotiate with the house owners but their stand appears to be “Buy our house 

or no deal.” In the meantime the pumps need a place to run the water. Clark said the 

Conservancy District should be paying to run a pipe to get the water out of the area and create a 

permanent solution.   

Darwin stated there is a problem with the sewer manholes out by Sand Hollow sinking due to 

the high groundwater.  Mike Vercimak mentioned it is also affecting the City storm water 

system. 

 

On another matter, Mr. Hall said the Sewer District is comfortable with a separate agreement 

regarding sewer and the pump station at Grandpa’s Pond if that will simplify the agreement.  

 

The group discussed the term “reasonable governmental rate” used in the Grandpa’s Pond 

Agreement. Dave Imlay stated the Power Department has only small commercial, large 

commercial, and city rates. The schools are on the large commercial rate. Mayor Bramall 

suggested the fairest rate for Ash Creek Special Service District. Dave Imlay said each class of 

rate payer should pay for their fair share of the power used, which the Power Department pays 

for on the market.  

 

Darwin reminded the Council the District has not charged for sewer service to any City building. 

He reminded Dave the District provides treatment at a cost.  Language was agreed upon at a 

“reasonable” rate.  It was clarified the sewer lift stations are charged the small commercial rate 

with a demand rate. Darwin Hall agreed to remove the power rate issue regarding other pump 

stations.  The agreement states Hurricane Power will be responsible for the extension of power 

to the pump station, which probably means they will provide men and equipment and charge 

for materials only. Pam explained the original agreement does not have anything to do with the 

sewer pump station.  

 

Dave said the Power Department is having a rate design completed and is wiling to add Ash 

Creek into the City rate portion of the study. Now is the time to add that into the rate design. All 

agreed to strike the clause regarding the power rates from the agreement.  



Hurricane City Council minutes 1-29-2015 

2 

 

 

Tom Kuhlmann asked about providing emergency services to events for free. He stated the Fire 

budget is extremely thin and included personnel cuts, making serving events more difficult.  The 

standard Fire charge is $125 an hour for an ambulance and 2 people. He referred to private 

enterprise event organizers benefitting from donated ambulance services. He said it is difficult 

to meet the budget if fees are waived. Pam Humphries said events should be able to pay for 

themselves by year 3 or 4. Darin Thomas commented he felt it should be reviewed on a case by 

case basis. Darin Thomas stated Sean Reddish is amazed the events are not required to pay their 

own way as his Workx event pays their way. Chief Kuhlmann said they do give Workx an actual 

cost rate for their event.  

Kevin Tervort said he has learned the operative phrase “How much are you willing to 

contribute?” He recommended using it when speaking to event organizers.   

John Bramall suggested a rate scale for different kinds of events.   

 

Chief Excell reminded the Council there are state laws regulating what law enforcement can and 

cannot do. Private security firms don’t like the competition so the department has to charge.  

 

Chief Kuhlman said Chris Wyler came in with a proposal for a subdivision on Turf Sod Road. He 

asked for direction from the Council on what kind of development it will allow without water 

infrastructure. Water storage for a house is based on square footage and the storage 

requirement for Mr. Wyler’s proposed house may be 1500 gpm for 2 hours.  Mr. Kuhlman stated 

he is reluctant to keep “band-aiding” the fire protection issues in this area.  It is cumbersome for 

firefighters to draft out of ponds and tanks for fire protection. John Bramall said the property 

owner should bring the water line the ¾ of a mile for fire protection.  

 

Chief Excell reported on the counterfeit $100 bills passed a couple of weeks ago. The woman 

was identified through cameras in the different businesses. The bills were very good and hard to 

identify. Counting machine at the bank found the counterfeit bills. There is some information 

that the bills are coming through the cartel in Mexico but no way to prove it. The suspect, Halei 

Ludlow, denied any involvement. 

The department has received information connected to the emergency alert system and will 

begin testing as soon as the FCC get the documents on the 104.5 FM radio station. Robert Richie 

has been helping get this set up.  

Chief Excell also reported Monday will be the Police Chiefs day at the State Legislature. The 

Department has been busy and is doing some reorganizing to serve the community best. They 

are starting a Citizens Academy this year.  

 

Arthur LeBaron said he will be leaving to go to a Scout meeting. He explained the Street cross 

sections adoption ordinance repeals old ordinance standards to replace them with standards 

the City has used since the adoption of the Transportation Master Plan was adopted in 2011. He 

stated he is pleased with the results of the independent cost estimator from SunRoc and lower 

bid from Interstate Rock for the Grandpa’s Pond project.  

In regards to David Eves and the drainage basin in Windsor Estates. Mr. LeBaron explained 

Windsor Estates was required to install two detention basins. When Mr. Eves bought the 

property with one of the basins, he said he would like to change the detention basin because he 

didn’t like it. Staff approved a new design and allowed him to build it. Mr. Eves could have 

fenced the pond out of his yard but he chose to fence it in. Darin Thomas disclosed that Mr. Eves 



Hurricane City Council minutes 1-29-2015 

3 

 

talked to him about this issue before the meeting. Mr. Thomas was told on the phone that there 

was an agreement but that does not appear to be the case.  

 

Dave Imlay told the Council the Power board had a great presentation from Scott Hughes 

regarding the SCADA system he is building and designing. He is one of the few SCADA specialists 

in the state and he is working exclusively for Hurricane City Power.  Other power departments 

have to share a roving SCADA Specialist.   

Mayor Bramall brought the regular meeting to order. A Boy Scout led the Pledge of Allegiance 

and Arthur LeBaron offered prayer. No one else volunteered to give another thought or prayer.  

 

Presentation of employee of the month award and approval of minutes were postponed until 

next month.  

6:15 p.m. – Public Forum – Comments From Public 

Mike Madsen of Interstate Rock invited the City to put a presentation in a booth they will 

provide in the garage of their Parade Home to help sell Hurricane City to Parade visitors. He also 

announced Interstate Rock is planning to develop an assisted living center in Hurricane but will 

need to get the property rezoned. They are considering the location between Wal-Mart and the 

elementary school. He stated he feels this is a good project for the City of Hurricane. The 

proposal will be a 55 bed facility in addition to 10 memory units and enough property reserved 

to build a second facility.  

Mayor John Bramall suggested ideas for the booth space. Clark Fawcett said the City will get 

some people organized for the event from the 13th to the 22nd. It was clarified the house in in the 

Park View Subdivision and set up will be done on the 12th.  Mayor Bramall and Clark and council 

members volunteered to staff the booth.  

 

Verlene Scott explained her vacant lot on 100 North is for sale. They have had several buyers’ 

deals fall through because the title company has found a title problem due to the access to the 

street. Toni Foran explained the history of the area which was approved for a subdivision and the 

infrastructure constructed before the final flood maps were approved. Enough of the lots were 

affected by floodway that the developer did not record the subdivision and one owner, Lance 

Blackmore, purchased all the property except the Scott’s lot and one lot that has had a house for 

many years. This included the roadway in front of Mrs. Scott’s property. The owner has not been 

inclined to dedicate the road to the City.  

Council members discussed how many years a property has to be used by the public to be 

considered public access and whether a quiet title action would be effective in this case. Ethelyn 

Humphries suggested Mrs. Scott approach the Blackmores to purchase the strip. Civil action was 

also suggested.   

 

Discussion regarding county-wide curbside recycling program – Neil Schwendinn, director of 

the Solid Waste District, explained the Board has been considering curbside recycling for waste 

customers. They sent out a bid request and got two bids. Bids were different for different 

scenarios such as serving urban areas only, county wide mandatory, county wide opt out, and 

urban area opt out. The District Executive Committee recommended a county wide opt out 

program. Under that program the maximum fee would be $3.35 per home per month. He 

explained the program gives residents a period of time to opt out and if they do not opt out the 



Hurricane City Council minutes 1-29-2015 

4 

 

fee will be added to their bill and a recycling container delivered to homes. Materials that can be 

placed in the container are paper, cardboard, plastic, and metal. He asked for feedback from the 

Council. Clark Fawcett asked about the opt-out program. Mr. Schwendinn clarified the opt-out 

option is only available to residents in the area when the program starts. New residents will 

automatically be included in the recycling program. Pam Humphries asked if the proposal took 

into consideration the lower amount of trash residents will generate if they recycle. Mr. 

Schwendinn explained the fixed costs associated with the service. The question of whether or 

not a resident can move to another area in the District and keep their opt out choice was 

discussed.  

Ethelyn Humphries pointed out offering curbside recycling is a good thing for Hurricane City and 

stated she supports the opt-out option. She explained it will mean less money to cities from 

recycling. Eventually binnies could go away if they are not used. The proposed rate is based on 

an assumption of the percentage of residents who opt in for the program.  Once the percentage 

and contractor are determined rates can be negotiated. Offering this to just the urban areas has 

been discussed and county wide was decided.  

Darin Thomas said he was opposed to curbside if it costs $20 more a month but is okay with $3.  

Mike Vercimak expressed his opinion that “You can charge people but you can’t force them to 

recycle. You are handling the same amount of garbage but I am paying you more for me to sort it 

for you.” 

Mr. Schwendinn stated the more waste tonnage is reduced to put in the landfill, the longer the 

useful life of the landfill.  

Fay Reber explained there is still going to have to be negotiations, contracts, and resolutions 

passed by the communities before this can go into effect.  

Mayor Bramall asked for an opinion from the Council members: Darin Larson – supports curbside 

recycling; Pam Humphries prefers to keep the binnies; Darin Thomas – supports recycling Kevin 

Tervort prefers to keep the binnies; Ethelyn Humphries supports curbside recycling. Mayor 

Bramall stated he supports the opt-out curbside recycling option.  

 

Consideration and possible approval of final plats for: A. Peregrine Pointe Phase 1-B 

Subdivision and B. Park View Phase 3 Subdivision – 

Mike Madsen represented the Park View Phase 3 plat.  Kevin Tervort motioned to approve the 

Final Plat for Park View Phase 3 Subdivision, seconded by Darin Thomas. Motion passed with 

Darin Larson, Darin Thomas, Kevin Tervort, and Ethelyn Humphries all voting aye. Pam 

Humphries voted no due to the driveways onto Park View Drive.  

A Perry Homes representative was not present to represent Peregrine Pointe Phase 1-B but the 

plat has been signed and the Planning Commission recommended approval. Ethelyn Humphries 

motioned to approve the final plat for Peregrine Pointe Phase 1-B, seconded by Darin Larson. 

Motion unanimously approved with Darin Larson, Pam Humphries, Darin Thomas, Kevin Tervort, 

and Ethelyn Humphries all voting aye.  

 

Discussion and possible approval of support of the 2015 Mountain Bike Festival and update 

and presentation of AmeriCorps project and possible future project- DJ Morisette explained the 

advertising underway for the Mountain Bike Festival and efforts to bring people from Alaska. She 

said they are changing the setup to keep everything on 100 West with the road closed and the 

beer garden in the middle. They were able to get some funding from the Washington County 

Tourism Board. Ms. Morisette stated they are coming to the Council to get consent to obtain a 

single event beer license and asking for support the same as last year, which was the cost of the 



Hurricane City Council minutes 1-29-2015 

5 

 

Community Center facilities and $1,000 for advertising. They do not require police or ambulance 

support. It was clarified there have been no complaints about the beer garden in the past.  

Darin Thomas asked if the Festival could support itself if the City did not provide help. Ms. 

Morisette said the Festival Expo people are not charged to exhibit because the Festival is not big 

enough yet and the Festival fee is not really high so they are just covering expenses.  She again 

asked for the City to cover the Community Center cost and $1,000 for advertising. Recreation 

Director Bryce King said there is potential for this Festival to grow and benefit the community 

but DJ and Quentin need to reach out to get people involved to make the Festival bigger. Bryce 

recommended any advertising donation should go to advertising outside of Washington County. 

He said this event needs more people involved within Washington County like Red Rock Bicycle 

and the other organizations involved in bicycling. Ms. Morisette said they would like help and do 

use employees from Zion Cycle but don’t want to give up using the partners and relationships 

they have through their Over the Edge bicycle shop.   

Darin Thomas motioned to support the Mountain Bike Festival with $1,000 for advertising 

outside Washington County, use of the Community Center facilities and stage, and granting local 

consent for a single event beer license with money for the approval coming from the City Council 

discretionary fund. Pam Humphries seconded the motion.  Motion unanimously approved with 

Darin Larson, Pam Humphries, Darin Thomas, Kevin Tervort, and Ethelyn Humphries all voting 

aye.  

Report on AmeriCorps Team – Ms. Morisette said the City was nominated for the “Above and 

Beyond” award by the AmeriCorps team that was here. They completed just under 8 miles of 

hard rocky trail. There are more trails to be built and they are applying for another team. She 

asked if the City had any way to pay for an AmeriCorps supervisor for 6 weeks. The regulations 

require the team to be supervised for at least 4 hours a day. She clarified this person would need 

to be someone who knows how to build trails.  

Clark Fawcett was excused to meet with the Scouts working on their merit badges.  

Consideration and possible approval of an ordinance updating Street Design Standards – 

Arthur LeBaron – Darin Thomas motioned to approve the ordinance updating street design 

standards, seconded by Pam. Motion unanimously approved with Darin Larson, Pam Humphries, 

Darin Thomas, Kevin Tervort, and Ethelyn Humphries all voting aye.  

Consideration and possible approval of an amended plat for Retreat Phase Two and Retreat 

Phase 2A at Sand Hollow Resort – The applicant was not ready to have this presented and the 

item was  tabled 

Report and presentation on Drug Task Force- Officer Travis Hall, currently assigned to the 

Washington County Drug Task Force, thanked the Council for their support. He reported last year 

the task force was involved with 264 cases which netted 572 felony arrests. They executed 51 

search warrants with about 12 of those in Hurricane – about 20% of the total. He reported which 

drugs were involved in the felonies, with the majority meth. The members of the Task Force 

consider all of Washington County their area of interest but Officer Hall considers the east side 

most important to protect Hurricane. He explained a recent warrant that required SWAT Force 

participation that included recovery of methamphetamine and stolen firearms and other stolen 



Hurricane City Council minutes 1-29-2015 

6 

 

property. As a point of interest he reported there were two homes in Hurricane found with 1 

marijuana plant each and both suspects were over 50 years old. One suspect said they had it  

because it is a beautiful plant.  

Darin Thomas asked if the City has had any active meth labs. Officer Hall said there have been no 

residential meth labs in two years. Two years ago there was a mobile meth lab contained in a 

suitcase.  Mr. Thomas asked for a rating on Hurricane a far as drug problem on a scale of 1-10. 

Officer Hall rated it at about a 5 – pretty average.  Kevin Tervort asked about pills. Officer Hall 

stated heroin use has gone up and it seems to be related to prescriptions use and abuse.   

John Bramall thanked Mr. Hall for his service.  

Officer Hall explained the drug of choice in schools is marijuana and with some prescription 

abuse. Heavier drugs are usually associated with people above school age.  

 

Consideration and possible approval of an agreement for purchase of Grandpa’s Pond property 

for use as a City park and recreation area – Kaden DeMille asked if there were any questions 

regarding the spreadsheet with recommendations for financing. He said Darren Barney 

estimated the Dixie Springs Park would cost from $400,000 to $600,000. Clark Fawcett talked to 

Zion’s Bank Public Finance and they suggested the City expand the sales tax bond previously 

discussed to purchase property and fund both Dixie Springs Park and Grandpa’s Pond in addition 

to purchasing the property. The City will have to re-do the parameters resolution to  raise the 

bond amount to $1.3 million. Not bonding would result in using all the money in the impact fee 

account for just Grandpa’s Pond. All agreed bonding is a better option.  

Pam Humphries asked Fay Reber about the original MOU’s regarding Grandpa’s Pond and the 

Ash Creek Sewer District since there was no mention of Ash Creek getting involved. Mr. Reber 

said he did at one time write separate agreements but it made more sense to combine it all in 

one agreement so each entitiy has one place to review responsibilities. Pam Humphries asked 

about the property purchase. Fay clarified the property will be purchased with impact fee 

vouchers.  It will be purchased when it is fully improved as a park. Exhibit A details all the park 

improvements that will be included. Pam explained she does not want anyone to ever question 

how the project reached this point. Mr. Reber explained the original agreement is not 

compatible with what is being done now but policies regarding impact fee credits have changed 

since the agreement was originally signed.  

Darin Larson questioned the impact fee vouchers being applicable to all Stratton property. Mr. 

Reber agreed it is broad but impact fee vouchers have been granted for large property owners to 

use anywhere on their projects. A list of currently owned Stratton properties will have to be 

maintained with the impact fee voucher records to ensure they are used only property currently 

owned.  

Donald Stratton explained the original agreement was to donate the property but at that time 

there was no park impact fee. He feels getting the vouchers puts them on an even playing field 

with other developers. 

Kevin Tervort motioned to approve the agreement for the purchase of Grandpa’s Pond property 

for use as a City park and recreation area with all the required attachments and exhibits without 

reference to the power rates for Ash Creek facilities, seconded by Ethelyn Humphries. Motion 

unanimously approved with Darin Larson, Pam Humphries, Darin Thomas, Kevin Tervort, and 

Ethelyn Humphries all voting aye.  

Fay Reber explained the agreement will still have to be approved and signed by the Sewer 

District and the Water District, which may change the completion date.  



Hurricane City Council minutes 1-29-2015 

7 

 

Mayor Bramall called the approval of this agreement a historic moment after years of 

negotiation.  The Stratton representatives present agreed.  

 

Consideration and possible approval of an application to join lots 234 and 203 in The Dunes at 

Sand Hollow-Lindsay T Atwood Trust applicant – Toni Foran explained Mr. Atwood was unable 

to be present due to medical problems. They are asking to have two lots in the Dunes 

subdivision joined into one lot so they have control over what happens on the lot adjoining 

theirs. This would also include abandoning the easement between the parcels.  

Darin Thomas motioned to approve the application to join lots 234 and 203 in the Dunes at Sand 

Hollow Subdivision and abandoning the easement between the lots, seconded by Kevin Tervort. 

Motion unanimously approved with Darin Larson, Pam Humphries, Darin Thomas, Kevin Tervort, 

and Ethelyn Humphries all voting aye.  

 

Ethelyn Humphries was excused at 7:40 p.m.  

 

Discussion and possible decision regarding drainage basin located at 683 S 990 West.-David 

Eves explained he has a drainage basin on his property which serves all the houses on the east 

side of the development. It fills up with about 3’ of water and weeds and requires maintenance. 

He recently fell into the drainage basin while trying to clean it up. He stated he bought the 

property that way and realized he can’t maintain it so he talked to the City staff and they 

suggested he have a design proposed to change the basin. Mr. Eves stated he was concerned 

because there can be about 3’ or 4’ of water in the basin and he fears for a kid’s life. He talked 

with Mike Vercimak and expressed his concerns, pointing out insurance companies always ask 

where an accident happens. Mr. Eves said, “Mike said, we will see what we can do – maybe help 

with the rock.” Mr. Eves said he has spent about $5,000 on the project and running out of 

money. The hole is now an additional 3’ deep. He stated he believes the proposed design he is 

having built limits the city liability and limits health and safety concern and suggested the City 

should contribute to the project. He stated he needs 340 ton of rock at about $3100 and $300 

for the road base. He suggested the City use their trucks to haul the rock because the hauled 

cost is about $3700 and $500. Road base cost is $4.50 a yard.  

Mike Vercimak stated he did not feel the City made any representation the City would spend 

money to help implement Mr. Eves’ changes to the basin. He stated the City has no money 

budgeted to buy rock but could offer to help haul. The City’s screening of road base has not been 

done yet so it has no material available.  

Darin Thomas clarified this is a basin that collects storm water off a city street. Mike Vercimak 

said it does and for the storm drain purposes, this basin works as it what built. Mr. Thomas asked 

if the storm drain functions better with this design. Mr. Vercimak said it would be easier to clean 

but not function any better.  Mr. Eves said he sees this  as a way to limit liability. Clark Fawcett 

reminded the Council the basin was approved as part of the subdivision. If this is considered the 

new standard for subdivisions it would mean requiring this type of design from all new 

subdivisions. John Bramall said the City can’t be held responsible for damage from storm water.   

Darin Larson clarified the request is for hauling rock. Mike Vercimak said the City could supply 

road base if the project can wait until it is screened.  

The group discussed storm drain basin standards. Engineer Karl Rasmussen said Washington City 

has a requirement for HOA’s to maintain the individual basins. He suggested Hurricane look at 

the standards in other cities. All agreed some retention basins are more attractive and easier to 



Hurricane City Council minutes 1-29-2015 

8 

 

maintain than others. The possibility of creating a standard for construction of on-site detention 

and retention facilities was discussed.  

Mike Vercimak explained if the City adopts a higher standard for these basins the Council has to 

be willing to hold the developer to those standards. It will cost developers more money.  

Lynn Excell, speaking as a citizen, reminded the Council of septic systems where the leach field 

fails and has to be replaced. He questioned if the drainage system Mr. Eves is building will 

eventually fail after the rock spaces are plugged with silt and debris. He stated there is a 

drainage basin on a lot in his subdivision. The buyer knew the basin was there when he bought 

the property and he is working with it.  Mr. Excell predicted the basin will fail.  

Karl Rasmussen assured the Council this system will work for a long time.  

It was explained that Mr. Eves has created a situation by having the hole dug deeper and he 

wants to get it done so it does not collapse, possibly affecting his garage.  

After more discussion, Darin Thomas motioned to approve the City supplying the trucking, giving 

$3,000 out of discretionary fund to Mr. Eves’ project, seconded by Kevin Tervort. Motion 

unanimously approved with Darin Larson, Pam Humphries, Darin Thomas, and  Kevin Tervort, 

voting aye. Pam Humphries stated she does not like setting a precedent but did say yes.  

Mayor, Council and Staff reports 

 
Pam Humphries Court, Water, Power, Hurricane Fire and Ambulance Department – Pam reported 

on how much knowledge Scott Hughes has about SCADA and the work he has 

done for the Power Department. She recommended he get a raise.  Other cities 

use a roving SCADA man. 

Pam said she went to Planning Commission last night and heard the discussion on 

vacation rentals and the trail through the Park Side subdivision. She 

recommended the trail go where the Council wants it built.   

Darin Larson Planning Commission, Economic Development, Planning Department – no report 

Kevin Tervort  Golf Course,  Streets & Drainage,  Industrial Park, Youth City Council, Mosquito 

Abatement – Fire Board – former Council member Mike Jensen’s daughter got a 

mission call to Trinidad so Mike Jensen is taking on Youth City Council.  

The purchase of new ambulance was approved by Fire Board.  

Darin Thomas  Recreation, Parks & Cemetery, Swimming Pool, Board of Adjustment, Historical 

Preservation, Beautification – no report 

Mayor  Airport, Administration, Building, Police, Animal Control, School Crossing Guards, 

Emergency Management, Victim Services, Public Works, Engineer – Mayor 

Bramall reported he signed the agreement with the FAA for the airport fencing 

project and a match will be needed in next year’s budget.  

There will be a bid request for pavement preservation projects at the airport.  

  
 

 

  

 

1. Meeting adjourned at 9:35 p.m. 


